
SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
MEETING 

 
SUMMONS 
 

10.30 am  
Tuesday, 23rd April, 2019 
Orbit Business Centre, Rhydycar Business Park, Merthyr 
Tydfil, CF48 1DL 
 

 
Further information regarding this agenda is available from the  

Democratic Services Department at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council  
Tel: (01685) 725284     Email: democratic@merthyr.gov.uk 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

 

3. Interim Financial Report for 2019/2020   

 To consider the attached report 
 

1 - 6 

 



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is the host local authority for the South Wales 
Police and Crime Panel 

4. Presentations   

4.1   IRIS (Identification to Improve Safety) 
Implementation in South Wales 

 

4.2   Tackling Violence Against Women and Girls  

4.3   Combating Violent Crime  

4.4   Welsh Government and Ministry of Justice 
Initiatives on Women Offenders and Youth 
offending 

 

5. Work Plan 2019/2020   

 To consider the attached report 
 

7 - 10 

6. Update on WLGA PCP Training Event on 26 
March 2019  

 

7. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
COMPOSITION: Councillor R Smith (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Chair) 
  
 Councillors: 

B Bowen-Thomson (Cardiff Council), T Davies (Cardiff 
Council), R Lewis (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), P Rees 
(Neath Port Talbot CBC), C Richards (City and County 
of Swansea), R Young (Bridgend CBC), J Charles (Vale 
of Glamorgan CBC) and E Kirchner (City and County of 
Swansea) 
 
Co-optees: 
M Jehu (Vice-Chair) 
M Jones 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
 



  
 

  
 

Police & Crime Panel for South Wales : April 23rd 2019 
Report of the Police & Crime Commissioner and his Chief Finance Officer 

Interim Finance Report 2019/20 

Introduction 

This report is the first Finance report for the 2019/20 year, and follows on from 
the Precept report presented to the Police & Crime Panel in January 2019.   

By the June meeting of the Panel we will be able to provide a more substantial 
report which will take account of the way South Wales Police will cope with the 
efficiency savings required to deal with the £7.2million gap that was identified 
in the January report, even after the increase in the precept.  Currently there are 
still significant issues to be resolved, including the way in which resources will 
be provided by the Home Office and/or Welsh Government to meet the 
significant costs of the new police officer graduate training scheme.  There are 
also ongoing discussions about allocations by the Home Office to support work 
to reduce violence and knife crime, with an indication that some money will 
come to South Wales but no detail as to whether the bid that we were invited 
to make will be met in full. The report will also provide the requested 
information on the finances of the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Team for 
the current financial year with reference to other comparable teams as the full 
information should be available by then.   

This report is based on the information that is currently available in respect of 
the 2019-2020 financial year, including some headline facts and figures relating 
to the operations of the Commissioner’s Team, along with an analysis of the 
2019-2020 settlement which provides the facts clearly and dispels the myth that 
the 2019-2020 settlement provides significant new money to policing. This is 
consistent with the message we gave at the Panel meeting in January 2019 at 
which the Precept proposal was received. 

Headline Facts & Figures of the South Wales Police & Crime Commissioner’s 
Operations 

The strategic allocation of resources within South Wales Police are fully aligned 
with the priorities set out in the Police & Crime Plan 2019-2023 which was 
considered by the Panel at its last meeting, both in terms of the resources 
delegated to the Chief Constable and the work managed by the Commissioner.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



  
 
 

  
 
 

The figures presented below are based on 2018-2019 financial year, and are the 
latest available. They are the official CIPFA published data for all Police & Crime 
Commissioner Teams across Wales and England.  

In summary, they show the following for the Police & Crime Commissioner for 
South Wales: 

• The highest earner in terms of “income generated” – which refers to 
finance from sources such as the Police Innovation Fund to fund new ways 
of preventing both harm and demand 

• The highest in terms of Government grants awarded  
• Despite being the highest income generator, leading to significant 

projects under management, the Commissioner’s staffing complement is 
at the average of all 43 PCCs 

• The Commissioner’s budget, expressed as a percentage of net funding, is 
only marginally higher than the average  

These are detailed in the table below: 

Table 1 – Extract from 2018-2019 CIPFA Published Data for Police and Crime 
Commissioners 

Metric South Wales 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

Average of all PCCs South Wales Police & 
Crime Commissioner’s 
Share as a Percentage of 
the Total in England & 
Wales 

Income Generated £6,670m £1,613m 9.6% (against 2.3% of 
total population) 

Government Grants 
Awarded 

£5,084m £1,387m 8.5% (against 2.3% of 
total population) 

Commissioner 
Staffing as %age of 
the Total 

0.5% 0.5% N/A 

Commissioner’s 
Budget as %age of Net 
Funding 

1.9% 1.8% N/A 

Source: CIPFA Police Objective Analysis Data for 2018/19 

The Panel will be aware of the clear emphasis that the Chief Constable, Matt 
Jukes QPM, has placed on prevention and the Panel has received reports on the 
leadership that has been provided through a series of significant initiatives led 
by the Commissioner or pursued jointly by the Commissioner and the Chief 
Constable.  For example the work on Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) in 
Maesteg was undertaken with funds provided by the Police Innovation Fund, 

Page 4



  
 

  
 

involved partners including Bridgend CBC and Public Health Wales and led to the 
£6.8m grant from the Police Transformation Fund to take the Early Action 
Together project Wales wide, something that is attracting international interest. 

The 2019-2020 Police Grant Settlement 

In our presentation to the Police and Crime Panel in January, we spelt out the 
very considerable challenges facing South Wales Police in 2019-2020. The Panel 
has asked to be kept informed of the way in which those challenges are being 
met and we will therefore present a detailed report to the next meeting of the 
panel in June including the way in which the Chief Constable and the 
Commissioner, with our respective Chief Finance Officers, are working to meet 
the challenge of saving (cutting) £7.2million from the budget even after increase 
in the precept while maintaining the service to the people of South Wales.   

This is a significant challenge and we are grateful for the interest and support 
that has been shown across South Wales although it is disturbing that there 
continues to be a claim by Home Office Ministers that there has been a 
significant increase in the resources available to the police in England and Wales.   

There has not been an increase in what the Home Office provides. 

Indeed the core Police Grant has been cut in real terms.  One-off grants have 
been provided for specific issues that are in the news such as Serious & 
Organised Crime or Counter-Terrorism, but no new core funding has been 
delivered by the UK Government. 

In October the Home Secretary responded to a question the Commissioner put 
to him personally by acknowledging that local people would expect money 
raised through the precept to be spent on additional local policing rather than 
being used to meet a shortfall in the responsibilities of the Home Office and the 
Treasury.  Despite that, Ministers have passed the burden of increased costs and 
a “pensions black hole” on to local council tax payers and have not provided 
extra money to meet the extra costs of local policing.  

For South Wales Police to achieve a standstill budget for 2019/20 we required 
around £26.5m of additional core funding.  We are £7.2m short of this - even 
with local tax payers making a greater contribution. And the new cuts come on 
top of £51m recurrent savings already made since 2012 – taking us to £58.2m in 
total so far. 

There is some evidence that most people can now see through the smoke and 
mirrors - but it is important to set the record straight when Ministers claim that 

Page 5



  
 
 

  
 
 

policing across the UK has received an additional £970m or claim that South 
Wales Police has received an additional £19.3m.  It’s simply not true, as 
members of the Panel know from the report they received in January 2019.   

THE KEY FACTS : 

• The Police Grant from Central Government has been cut by a third in 
recent years 

• Until this April the shortfall in police pensions has been met by the 
Treasury but now it is being passed to the local budget.   

• After Chief Constables and Commissioners objected to the damage this 
would do to local Forces – an additional £153m was found towards that 
new burden. This is NOT additional money, just money to meet the cost 
of the new burden, with no guarantee that the cost will be met in future. 

• £149m is going specifically to Counter Terrorism and tackling Serious and 
Organised Crime – so it’s not available to support local policing.  And 
Ministers have effectively required £507milion to be raised from local 
council tax payers.  

• There are no extra funds to pay for pay awards (at 2%) 

• We pay £1m a year to the Apprenticeship Levy and we are still waiting to 
hear how the Home Office intends to help us meet the cost of the new 
training scheme for police officers. 

• There’s just £161m of core funding for 43 forces - a 2.1% increase which 
is below inflation.  Yet demand is up and the work of the police becomes 
ever more complex year on year. 

The table below summarises the budget reconciliation and the resultant savings 
target that is needed in order to produce a balanced budget. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



  
 

  
 

Table 2 – Budget Reconciliation & Savings Required for 2019/20 

Item 2019/20 
£M 

2019/20 
£M 

Additional Requirements / Cost Pressures:   
Pay & Price Inflation 9.8  
New National Insurance / Pension Costs 6.9  
Technology & Change Essential Expenditure 3.8  
Other Budgetary Pressures / Vacancy Reversal 6.0  
Total Additional Requirements  26.5 
Additional Funding:   
Grant (6.4)  
Precept Increase (12.9)  
Total Additional Funding  (19.3) 
Shortfall / Additional Savings Required in 2019/20  7.2 

Source: Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-2023 

Despite all these challenges we are determined not to retreat from our 
communities.   

While some Forces in England have stepped away from local and preventative 
community policing, in South Wales Neighbourhood Policing is currently being 
refreshed, updated and strengthened. 

While calls on the police through the Public Service Centre and in particular on 
the 101 service have never been greater, we are coping better than other Forces 
and inventing new ways to offer new ways for the public to contact the police. 

Priorities for intervention – such as tackling violence against women and girls or 
hate crime – are being pursued actively by the Commissioner and by the Chief 
Constable. 

We are determined to deliver the aspirations set out in the Police & Crime Plan 
2019-2023 which will be no easier this year than for the past several years.  
While no end to austerity is in sight there is a steely determination to work 
together and with our partners to continue “doing more with less” to keep the 
communities of South Wales safe. 

Rt Hon Alun Michael,  
Police & Crime Commissioner for South Wales 

Peter Curran  

Chief Finance Officer for the South Wales Police & Crime Commissioner 

15 April 2019 

Page 7



  
 
 

  
 
 

 

 

Page 8



 

 

 
REPORT TO  

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 

23rd April 2019 

SWPCP Work Programme and Future Meeting Dates 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

To agree the forward work programme for the Panel; and to confirm future 
meeting dates up to and including the Annual meeting in 2020. 

 
 

 

1.0 Work Programme. 

1.1 The Panel's rules of procedure state that the Panel will be responsible for 
setting its own work programme, taking into account the priorities defined 
by the Police and Crime Commissioner for South Wales (the 
Commissioner) within the context of the Police and Crime (Reduction) 
Plan and Annual Report.  

 
1.2 The work programme must also include the functions described in the 

terms of reference for the Panel (see appendix I).  
 

1.3 In setting the work programme the Panel will also take into account the 
wishes of its members. As per the Panels rules of procedure, any 
member of the Panel shall be entitled to request an item to be placed on 
an agenda for a future meeting, which is relevant to the Panel's 
functions, subject to the approval of the Chair. 

 
1.4 A work programme will enable the Panel to plan and focus on how it will 

effectively provide challenge to the Commissioner and deliver its 
responsibilities within the context of the terms of reference and rules of 
procedure of the Panel. 

 
1.5 It is to be noted that the work programme is flexible to enable additional 

items to accommodate items throughout the year.  
 

1.6 So far as practicable the Panel shall consult with the Commissioner in 
detailing its work programme in order to ensure the Panel is able to 
provide support and challenge. 

 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 

2.0 Future Meeting Dates of the Panel 
 

2.1 In considering the work programme (Appendix II) the Panel will be 
required to agree its schedule of meetings up to and including the 
Annual Meeting in 2020. 

 
2.2 The Panels Rules of Procedure state that there shall be a minimum of 

four ordinary meetings of the Panel held in public in each municipal year 
to carry out the functions of the Panel. In addition the Panel shall hold an 
annual meeting between 1st April and the 30th June each year to appoint 
the Chair and Vice Chair of the Panel.  

 
Typically the Panel schedules 5 meetings per year and as such the 
schedule of meetings is suggested as follows:- 

 
2019/20 
Tuesday  4th June 2019 (Annual Meeting) 
Tuesday  17th September 2019 (Annual Report)  
Tuesday  10th December 2019   
Thursday  30th January 2020 (Precept meeting)  
Friday   24th April 2020 
 
2020/21 
Thursday  4th June 2020 (Annual meeting) 
 

 3.0 Recommendation(s) that:-  
   

3.1 The meeting dates up to and including the annual meeting in 
2020 are agreed. 

 
3.2 The Work Programme up to and including the Panel’s Annual 

Meeting in 2020 is prepared by the Panel. 
 

 

Simon Jones 
Senior Solicitor,  
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

APPENDIX I 

South Wales Police and Crime Panel 

Terms of Reference 

1. To review and make a report or recommendation on the draft South Wales Police and 
Crime Plan, or draft variation to the South Wales Police and Crime Plan, provided to the 
Panel by the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner. 

2. To review, put questions to the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner at a public 
meeting of the Panel, and make a report or recommendation (as necessary) on the 
annual report. 

3. To hold a confirmation hearing and review, make a report and recommendation (as 
necessary) in respect of proposed senior appointments made by the South Wales Police 
and Crime Commissioner. 

4. To review and make a report on the proposed appointment of the Chief Constable. 

5. To review and make a report and recommendation (as necessary) on the proposed 
precept. 

6. To review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the South Wales 
Police Crime Commissioner in connection with the discharge of the Commissioners 
functions (as defined by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act and 
subsequent amendments) 

7. To make reports or recommendations to the South Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner with respect to the discharge of the Commissioners functions (as defined 
by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act and subsequent amendments) 

8. To support the effective exercise of the functions of the South Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 

9. To fulfil functions in relation to complaints about conduct matters, in accordance with the 
responsibilities accorded to the Panel under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility 
Act. 

10. To appoint an Acting South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner if necessary. 

11. To suspend the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner if it appears to the Panel 
that the Commissioner has been charged in the United Kingdom or Isle of Man with an 
offence which carries a maximum term of imprisonment exceeding two years. 

12. To carry out any other Police and Crime Panel functions and exercise any supporting 
powers contained in The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 in addition to 
those set out above. 

 

 

Page 11



 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Interim Financial Report for 2019/2020
	5 Work Plan 2019/2020
	SWPCP Work Programme and Future Meeting Dates


